PHILIPPINE HISTORICAL DOCUMENTS TN THE
NATIONAL ARCHIVES OF MEXICO *

REEL 11

[Continuation of Vol. 20. This reel starts with p. 232 of Exposure 7. Exposures 8-10
missing. ] _
1801 Exp. 11—The carpenter Ysidro Jose Abad is taken prisoner for several
' pieces of Chinese merchandise found in his possession.
pp. 309-416

Vol. 21
1785-1788 [sic]

1785 Exp. 1—Don Juan Antonio Jimenez Frenero reports to Sor Conde de Gal-
vez having published the royal cedula about the Compania de
Comercio de Filipinas, and letters of alcaldes and tenientes ac-
knowledging receipt of copies of the said decree.
pp. 1-71

1785 LExp. 3—The Commissary of San Blas gives an account to His Excellency
of the aid he asked for to enable him to discharge his duties.
pp. 97-134

1785 Exp. 4—The Commissary of San Blas tells His Excellency that he would
await the payments of Don Francisco Antonio Mourelle and Jose
Canizares, in accordance with previous arrangements,
pp. 135-148

1785 Exp. 5—Index of the correspondence which the aide-de-camp of the In-
fantry Division of San Blas sends to the Viceroy of New Spain.
pp. 149-157

1785 Exp. 6—A report on the inspection made of Idis Majesty’s ship named La
Felicidad alias La Mexicana which sets sail on orders from above.
pp. 158-169

1785 Exp. 7—Invoice of medicines being shipped in the schooner for the voy-
age it will make to the district of San Blas.
pp. 170-172
1785 Exp. 8—A list of tools and other instruments for calking which have been
given by the arsenal of San Blas to Marcelino Becerra, carpenter.
p. 173

* This list is the continuation of the list of documents in the first ten reels which was.
published in the December, 1965 issue of the Asian Studies. We are publishing in this
issue the list of documents found in the last twenty reels (Reel 11—Reel 30). The pro-
cessing of the documents was undertaken by the U.P. President’s Committee for the
Processing of the Lopez-Mateos Microfilms of the Philippine historical documents deposit-
ed in the National Archives of Mexico. The Committee’s Chairman was Prof. G. Fores-
Ganzon of the Department of History and Head of the American Studies Committee. Its
members were: Dr, Lilia Laurel and Prof. Antolina Antonio of the Department of
Spanish; Mrs. Justina S. Ocampo of the Department of History and Miss Lydia Escarilla
(on leave) of the U.P. Library. (The Editor.)
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9—The nature and amount of provisions being prepared by the ac-
countant of the Royal Treasury in San Blas for the crew of the
schooner La Felicidad.
pp. 174-206
10—Inventory of the packet-boat San Carlos which sails on orders from

above, to a secret destination.
pp. 207-230 -

, 11—Inventory of tools and other instruments which have been ngen

by the arsenal of San Blas to Francisco Rua, calker of the packet-
boat San Carlos.
pp. 230-231
12—The Commissary of San Blas reports having received in that treas-
ury $30,000 which the royal officials of Guadala)ara had sent on

orders of ‘His Excellency.
pp. 237-240

twp, 13—Roster of the crew of the packet-boat San Carlos el Filipino which

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

left for a secret destination.
pp. 241-244

xp. 14—Letters of various judges and alealdes to Conde de Galvez, in-

forming him that they had received copies of the decree regard-
ing the establishment of the Royal Company of the Phlhppmcs
pp. 245-304

15—Reply concerning the establishment of the Compania del Comer-

" clo de Filipinas.
pp. 305-313

Vol 22
Philippines, 1785-1803 [sic]
1-—An account of the stay at the Convent of Sto. Tomas de Villa-
nueva, outside Mexico, of thirty Agustinian religious who left
Spain for the Province of the Holy Name of Jesus in the Philip-
pines.
pp. 1-30
2 An account of seven Recollect missionaries who arrived aboard
the Santiago de Espana.
pp. 1577
[Exposure 3 is missing]
4—Order concerning thirteen Recollect missionaries being sent to the

Province of San Nicolas Tolentino in the Philippines.
pp. 77-102

5——Joaquin de San Agustin writes that Father Jose Copacabana should
not remain in the realm on the pretext of being sick; this is fol-
lowed by several documents on the Copacabana case.
pp. 103-262

6—Query on whether or not in the collection of taxes on goods the

12% reduction on the value of goods should be applied to the

cargo of two ships, as is done in cases when no fair is held.
pp. 268-301
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Veol. 23
1785 Exp. 1—Don Antonio Bustamante Bustilo y Pablo, as ad interim governor
of the: New Kingdom of Leon, presents the names of guarantors
demanded of him. [This document is partially illegible and - appa-
rently is contmued in’ Reel 12.]
Reel 121
Volume 23

1785 Exp. 1—~Dr. Don Antonio Bustamante Bustdlo y Pablo as Governor of the
vacant bishopric which was of the diocese of Nuevo Reino' de
Leon presents the bondsmen sent to him.
pp: 130
1785 Dr. Don Antonio Bustamante canon of the Holy Church of Pueblo,
as Governor of the diocese of Reino de Leon, presents papers
asking “for promgauon of term " to such ‘a time he deems desir-
able.2
pp. 31-61
1792 Exp. 3—Through Ignacio Cobarrubias, Dr. . Don Antonio:Bhstamante says
that in order to answer the principal judicial decree, he needs
‘the paper regarding the appointment as trustee of and the ac
counts given by Don Felipe Calzado.?
pp. 6298
17994 Exp. 4—Through Joaquin Jose Guerrero y Garcia, Dona Ma. Josefa Valdez
y Bustamante says that the Villanuevas have returned Atty. Ol-
medo to his work without any answer, by virtue of the judicial
decree given, and requests that he be reinstated under the terms
of His Excellency.
’ pp. 99-130
1806 Exp. 2-—Through Anselmo Rodriguez Balda, Don Jose Antonio Salazar y
Bustamante and Dona Maria Josefa Quijano, mother and guardian
of her young children, request an act of court from the Atty. of
the Royal Treasury as ordeted, and that later, it be registered
in the Higher Tribunal. This paper is continued on page. 246.
pp. 131-176
1807 Exp. 3—Through Andres de Alcantara, the Cathedral of the Holy Church
of Nuevo Reino de Leon requests that this document and its
preceding papers be handed to the Attomey of the Royal Treasury
as it is ordered.
pp. 177-218
1782 Exp. 4—Information regarding legitimacy and nobility given by Don Miguel
Valdez Mayorasgo, of this name and of his wife Dona Maria Rafacla
Bustamante y Pablo and his son Don Mlvuel Jose Marcos, all
residents of this court,
pp. 219-245 ,
1807 Exp. 5-—Through Anselmo Rodriguez Balda, Don Jose Antonio Salazar
Bustamante and Dona Matia Josefa Quijano, guardian of her

1Reel 12 actually begms with p. 12 of Volume 23,
2 Number of Exposure not indicated in the Indéx but this is rclated to lep 1 and
co1responds to pages 31-61 in the microfilm,
3This is Calzado in the microfilm. In the Index this appears as Zalzado.
4 This date is taken from microfilm. In the Index there is no date indicated.
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young children, request that an account be made of documents
which they accordingly present. This is a continuation of Exp. 2.
pp. 246-265

9_-Through Anselmo Rodriguez Balda, Don Jose Antonio Salazar y
Bustamante and Dona Maria Quijano, mother and legitimate
guardian of her children, request that in compliance with what
was resolved by the Higher Tribunal, the amount stipulated be
given to each part and liquidation be confirmed. '

pp. 266-280

6—Anselmo Rodriguez Balda, in the judicial decree of the finding
of Dr. Antonio Bustamante, requests that an order be issued to
the sub-delegate of Tlalpujahua in order to inform Mr. Manuel
Lorenzo regarding the . measures expressed in his claim against
the properties of Dr. Bustamante.
pp. 281-289

7—The Branch on anniversaries of Puebla in the decree on the finding
of Dr. Don Antonio Bustamante.
pp. 290-308

8—Papers regarding the remittance to Manila of P25,000 pesos kept
in the Royal Treasury, and allotted by Dona Barbara Bersosa for
the establishment of the Institution for the Poor.3
pp. 309-330
Volume 24

1-—Consultation of the Most Illustrious Archbishop of this Holy
Church regarding the shipment to Manila of the expressed amount
which correponds to the pious work of Don Juan Gutierrez Villar,
for the conversion of Chinese gentiles.
pp. 1-14

2—Papers regarding the remittance to Veracruz with destination to
Cadiz of the amount of 48,134 pesos, proceeds from Ramo de
Temporalidades of Manila (the Branch or office taking care of
proceeds from ecclesiastical effects). :
pp. 15-33

3—Sea freight from gross amount of cargo fee of the Frigate San
Jose.
pp. 34-48

4—Paper placed around 1790 to 1792, Second Book, corresponds to
duplicate of the vesel of the year '92. A statement of accounts
on p. 61.
pp. 48-124

5-—Statement on the cargo conducted by the Frigate of His Majesty,
San Andres, that left this port for that of Cavite.
pp. 125-145

5—Papers on the request that the landing of Don Ventura Reyes,

5 This exposure is numbered 118 in the Index, but it should be Exp. 8, the only
number missing in this volume.
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a special Navy Ensign of the Frigate San Andres, be conceded
and that this post be conferred to Cadet Antonio de Ortega..

pp. 146-158
1790 Exp. 6—Don Francisco Bazo Ibanez, lawyer of the Governor and the
Troops of the Marianas Islands, requests payment.
_ pp. 159-173
1791 Exp. 7—Papers regarding ecclesiastical stipends up to August 21, 1792.
pp. 174-180
1791 Exp. 8—Papers requesting that Don Juan Bautista David pay the Royal

Treasury the difference of the duties that were not collected in
the year "84 of what was shipped in San Blas for the Philippines.
pp. 181-241
1791 Exp. 9—That criminals sentenced to hard labor or banishment in a garrison
should not be destined to the Philippine Islands; the destination
of two prisoners who came from Peru.
pp. 242-280
1791 Exp. 10—That P58,300 be remitted to Acapulco for the clearing of the Ves-
sel San Andres.
pp. 281-285
1791 Exp. 11—Papers regarding medicine, paper, pen, utensils which in accordance
with a Royal Order have to come from Spain to Manila.6
pp. 286-291
1791 Exp. 12—Papers regarding medicines for the Hospital of Manila supplied by
the Ministers of this Royal Treasury.
pp. 292-298

1791 Exp. 13—Request of Don Jose Bustamante that his brother Manuel should
not be assigned to the service of His Majesty in Manila.
pp. 299-319
1792 Exp. 14—Appeal by Mariano Reyna that he be not assigned, for being idle,
to work in those islands.
pp. 319-331
1792 Exp. 15—Supply in Havana to nine Franciscan barefoot monks and one lay
missionary of the Philippines.
pp. 332-347
1791 Exp. 16—Arsrival of the vessel San Andres at the Port of San Blas under
the command of the Lieutenant of the Frigate Don Juan de
Marquina; its arrival at Acapulco on November 30 and the measure
regarding publication for the Fair and for the day of its departure.
pp. 348-391
~ Volume 25
1786 Exp. 1—Papers on the unloading of the Frigate San Jose de Gracia from
the Port of Cavite, which arrived at Acapulco on November 21,
1779; on whether the original records would be sent to the
Royal Tribunal of Accounts,
pp. 1-88

5 This exposure and the one preceding it are numbered 5 in the Index. This num-
Rering is followed in this translation because both exposures deal about the Frigate San
ndres.
6 In the Index this is marked Exp. 12 like the one following it. Here it is Exp. 11
because in the microfilm this comes before Exp. 12 pp. 292-298.
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2—Complete testimony of the original record of the unloading of the
Frigate named San Jose de Gracia that arrived at the Port of
Acapulco.”

pp. 89-212
Reel 13
Volume 25 )
2—Copy of the original manifest of the frigate San Jose Gracia which
docked and unloaded in Acapulco.
pp. 89-212

3—_—-Regard1ng two boxes of goods smuggled on board the frigate San

Andres by the passenger D. Felix Ruiz.
pp. 213-235

4—Regarding the seizure of the passenger D. Felix Ruiz of the frigate
San Andles, in which case the actmg Guardia Mayor claims a right
9 sue.

pp. 236-247 _

5—D. Franciscol Bustamante, in the name of D. Felix Ruiz, appeals to
the Supreme Council of Real Hacienda on the question of two
boxes of goods smuggled from China.

pp. 248-259

6—Regarding the seizure of the passenger D. Felix Ruiz because a

box of cloth was mistaken for another of wax.
-pp.  260-284

7—Papers against Antonio Fernandez , for not having submitted to the
Royal Warehouses the goods cnuusted to him by the Punmpal
Ministers of the Treasury of Acapulco.

pp. 295-386

8—About some goods smuggled in the frigate San Andres by the

sailor Antonio Diaz who died in that boat.
N pp. 387-417

9—The Ministers of Acapulco, regarding the protest- made by the
Ministers of Manila on the value of the goods seized from D.
Francisco” Torres and D. Felix Ruiz.

_ pp. 418-432

10—Regarding the duties which should be charged in San Blas from

the expeditions of the Comercio de Manila.
pp. 433-513
Volume 26

1—Royal Order stating excessiveness of the number of 2,343 pieces
of goods shipped in the Galleon San Jose, and much more exorbi-
tant, the number of 153 in the name of Commandant Don Diego
Choquet. :
pp. 15
2—Papers regarding the arrival in San Blas of the boat San Andres
from China and repairs made here on this boat.
pp. 6-66

7 Continuation of Exp, 2 in . this volume is found in Reel 13 because Reel 12 ends
on page 115 of Volume 12,
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3—Account of the expenses made against this Department by the
Royal Frigate La Pilar, during her stay in the port of Acapulco.
pp. 67-98
4—About the sending of the Budget of the year and other extra-
ordinary aids.
pp. 99-156
5—Budget remitted by Sr. D. Ignacio Maria de Alava regarding the
expenses to be incurred by the squadron in his charge. .
pp. 157215
6—Medicines from Spain for the drugstore of the Royal Hospital of
Manila.
pp. 216-265
7-—D. Cristobal Zorgo Diaz regarding permit to go to Manila,
pp. 266273
Volume 27
1—The Casa Cosio asking permission to remit to Manila $50,000 on
account of the Real Compania de Filipinas. Request made by the
same in January, 1788 for the remittance of $20,000.
pp. 1-39
2—D, Francisco Yraeta, that he be permitted to ship in the San
Andres $28,365 reals belonging to the Compania de Filipinas.
pp. 40-64
3—D. Ventura de los Reyes regarding extension of period for the
payment of duties on the load of the boat San Andres. The same
by D. Gabriel Teran in 1792.
pp. 65-80
4D, Gabriel de Teran—Official of the Consulate of Manila, that
the businessmen of Manila be granted extension for the payment
of duties on goods shipped.
pp. 81-143
Reel 14

{Volume 27 is continued in this reel which starts with p. 139 of Exp. 4]

1792

1794

Exp.

Exp.

5—Don Gabriel Teran requests that the fair be put off two days
until after the departure of the ship San Andres from Acapulco.
Several documents to support the proposition explain the need
for time to sell the goods from China brought in by the frigate
Magallanes.
pp. 144-182
6—Testimony to support the charge brought by the Royal Company
against Don Josef Teodoro Gatrcia de Arias, who had been en-
trusted with 7,847,536 pesos in his capacity as finance officer
of the frigate San Jose, in 1788. Other documents support the
claim that the said amount had been received by the finance
officer.
pp. 183-223
7—-Papers related to the situado in 1793, 1794 and 1795. A table
of collections for 1791, 1792 and 1793 is included. There is a
petition to-transfer one—thlrd of the amount collected, for use in
the Philippines.
pp. 224-274
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8—The governor-general of the Philippines requests 400 recruits for
the Tropa Veterana. The documents include a roster of the men
who applied, personal data, and the rcasons for enlisting.
pp. 275-326
9-—The amount distributed by the Treasury of Manila in the frigate
San Jose Bolandra, Horcasitas and Goleta Valdez, totaling $38,890.
Separate lists of the amounts in each ship are included.
pp. 327-347
Volume 28
1791-1792
1—A list of provisions for the frigate San Andres and the order that
these be supplied from Mexico. The list includes wine, unegal,
. pork, ham, sugar, and spices.
pp. 1-18
2—Documents clearing the ship Galleta that would leave for the
Philippines and attesting to its being sea-worthy.
pp. 19-46
3—Papers assigning vagrants and other persons to the troops in the
Philippines, including personal data of evervone and departure
from Acapulco.
pp. 47-137
4—Order to provide medicines and other supplies to the frigate San
Andres for its return trip to the Philippines. A list of the provi-
sions. given is attached.
pp. 138-151
5—The prosecution of Don Gerardo Ruiz for vagrancy. Included is a
biographical sketch of the man.
pp. 152-205
6—Jose Nicolas Ramirez is being sent to Manila, after being con-
demned for vagrancy. Charges and defending testimonies ate
included.
pp. 206-221
7—D. Tomas Fernandez Manila seeks permission to send $2,000 to
Manila as inheritance of his younger brother D. Jose Joaquin
Montoya.
8—Complaint of the mess officer of the frigate San Andres, Don
Joaquin de Ainciburu, against the commanding officer who left
him stranded.
pp. 230-258
9—The Provincial of missionaries of the Province of San Gregorio,
Philippines, requests that the passage of nine religious and a lay
brother be arranged.
pp. 259-261
10—Father Joaquin de San Agustin requests permision to leave; in-
cludes a list of goods for the missionaries of the Marianas and
the Philippines.
pp. 262-265

. 11—Don Juan Belluga is sentenced for vagrancy to serve eight years

in the Manila regiment.
pp. 266-291
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12—Don Cosme de Mier requests that he be allowed to ship 498
pesos and 7 reals to the officer in charge of properties of de-

ceased persons in Manila,
pp. 292-305

. 13—Diego Echevarria petitions that he be excused from serving in the

army in the Philippines where he had been assigned, explaining
that he was entitled to this pardon for having been instrumental
in denouncing the attempt to escape of criminals from the second
chain-gang of which he was a member. He was sent anyway.
‘ pp. 306-314
Vol. 29 ‘
1792-1793
1—Papers soliciting the re-assignment of eleven persons sentenced to
" serve in the army in Manila but who were found incapable. These
contain individual appeals and supporting testimonies.
B pp. 1-65 '

" 2—The lieutenant of Acapulco reports to those in charge of executing

the order to convey Francisco Velasquez and Jose Cardona to
Manila that the two are sick in Acapulco. He wants to know how
far he should go to help them.
pp. 66-85
3—Permits of Pablo Archiundra and Jose Salazar, former soldiers of
the Manila regiment who returned aboard the frigate San Jose in
1792,
pp. 86-92
4-—-Francisco Velasco sentenced for vagrancy to serve in the armed
forces of the Philippines petitions that he be given freedom be-
cause of illness. )
pp. 93-103
S—Documents pertaining to the atrival and cargo of the frigate San
Jose which arrived at the port of Acapulco from. the Philippines
and the amount of the sitnado it brought in 1784. Included also
is the situado brought by the ship San Carlos.
pp. 104-112
6-—A royal order replying to the report made by the Governor of
Manila to His Majesty concerning the increases in the treasury
for 1779, 1780, 1781, including an itemized list.
pp. 113-124
7—A letter of the Governor-General of Manila suggesting that a cer-
tain amount itemized in a list be deducted from the el situado.
pp. 125-193
8—Letter and other documents sent by the royal officials of Manila
regarding the el stituado of 17%4.
pp. 194-198
9-Letter and other documents sent by the royal officials of Manila
regarding the el situado of 1782, including an itemized list and a
summary table of goods shipped, names of owners of bundles, etc.
There is a suggestion of items which should be increased for the
situado and items which should be decreased.
pp. 199-274
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Exp 10--Remonstrance presented by Don Juan Gonzalez and Don Antonio

Palacios against the conduct of the Chief Officer and other royal
officials of Acapulco who questioned the rights of the ship which
arrived in 1787.

pp. 275-314

[This reel ends on page 305 of Exp. 10.]
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Reel 15
Volume 29

. 10—Representation of D. Juan Gonzales and D. Antonio Palacios,

regarding the explanation that the Castellano de Acapulco and
Royal Officers ask for, regarding the duties of the Nao which ar-
rived in the year 87.
pp. 275-314
Volume 30
1—That D. Jose Ignacio de Torres Elosua be drafted to the scrvice
in the army in Manila, for the reason that he is a vagrant.
pp. 1-30
2—D. Juan Antonio Cordero, destined to the Philippines asks that
his case be remitted to the Royal Criminal Court.
pp. 31-36
3—Don Jose Ygnacio Arce’s statement that he was apprehended
without cause and sent to the Philippines.
pp. 37-70
4—Dona Joaquin de Tapia, that her son Francisco Ruiz Crespo be
enlisted in the service of the army in the Philippines.
pp. 71-83
5—Ygnacio Rosales requests that he be relieved from army service in
the Philippines.
pp. 84-95
6—Jose Mariano Reyna, vagrant, that he be relieved of his assign-
ment to the Philippines.
: pp. 96-125
7—Manuel Veguillos, vagrant, requests that he be relieved of service
in the Philippines.
pp. 126-128
8—Mariano Malgarejo, that he be relieved from service in the Armada.
pp. 129-135
9—Manuel Herrera, in his behalf and that of other vagrants who had
been sent to the Philippines, requests that they be exempted
from service in the Armada, for reasons of the difficulties and
diseases incurred in the trip to and from Acapulco and during
the stay therein.
pp. 136-157

10—Jose Joaquin Pena, that he be relieved of the service in the squad-

ron to which he was assigned for being a vagrant.
pp. 158161

. 11—A request that D. Manuel Matute be sent for army service to the

Philippines for being a vagrant.
pp. 162-211
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12—Summaty information, on the instruction of Superior order; in-
qulrmg about the veracity of some acts of D. Manuel Matute.
pp. 212-232
13—Jose Antonio de Luna Trejo requests that he be not sent to the
Philippines as a vagrant.
pp. 233239
14-—D. Juan Jose Chavez, vagrant, requests that he be not punlshed
by sending him to the Philippines.
pp. 240-262
15—Regarding the fate of 69 vagrants apprehended with no boat to
conduct them to the Philippines.
pp. 263-294
16—Agustin Vicente Mendoza, vagrant, requests that he be set free.
pp. 295-299
Volume 31 ]
1—That orders be passed to some municipalities for the sending of
some vagrants to army services in the Philippines.
pp. 1-36
2—Payment of expenditures of the Chief Sergeant of the Plaza for
the habilitation of the vagrants that are being sent to Manila.

pp. 37-54
3—Correspondence with the Guardia mayor of Acapulco, Don Jose
de Rosas.
pp. 55-61

4———The subdelegate of Ycuzar, that the sending of some vagrants to
the Philippines for army service be declared just.
pp. 62-123
5—-52 prisoners remitted by the municipality of Puebla for army
service in the Philippines.
pp. 124-137
6——That Joseph Gomez Medma be not sent to the Philippines for
army service because he contracted matriage with Dona Manuela
Carpintero.
. pp. 138-159
7—DPedro Alvarado begs not to be sent as a vagrant to the Philippines
~ for army service.
) pp. 160-172
8—Jose Agustin de Aguayo, delivered by the Subdelegate of Tepeaca,
for vagrancy. .
pp. 173-181
9—Dona Gertrudis Pedrosa requests that her son Jose Alcocer be not
sent. to Manila,
pp. 182-186
10—That some of the vagrants of Puebla delivered for Manila be
assigned to the King’s Regiment.
pp. 187-194
11—Don Ildefonso Roa, requests not to be sent to the Philippines
for service in the army.
pp. 195202
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12—Regarding the drafting of Francisco Castrillo, vagrant, for service
in the army of the Philippines.
pp. 203-208
13—Pablo Martin Flores begs not to be sent to the service of the
army in the Philippines.
pp. 209-220
14—Regarding the drafting of several individuals, vagrants from the
jurisdiction of Maravatio, for army service in the Philippines.
pp. 221-264
15—Complaints against several gamblers, among them some of the
drafted vagrants, of Juana de Soria, whom they disrobed on the
20th of June last.
pp. 265-281
16—Charge against Juan Jose Argeta for illicit relations with Maria
Rafaela Espinoza.
pp. 282-352
Volume 32

1—Royal orders informing about the aid given to the mision of 88
religious (Agustinians) in the province of the Holy Name of Jesus
in the Philippines upon representations of Fr. Pedro Carracedo.

pp. 1-81

2—Copy of the instructions given to a mission of Dominicans who
came to the Philippines; copy coursed by Fray Antonio Marquez
who came in the same mission.

pp. 82:123

3-—Regarding which prelate should meet Fr. Antonio Marquez of the
Order of Sto. Domingo, who arrived from Spain for the missions
in the Philippines.

pp. 124204
Reel 16

3 of Vol. 32 is continued in this reel, starting with p. 160.]
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4—Concerning a group of Dominican missionaries who had arrived
enroute to the Philippines.
. pp. 205-221
5—Concerning a second batch of Dominican missionaries for the
Province of Santo Rosario in the Philippines.
pp. 222-268
6—Fr. Antonio Marquez, Dominican, requests permission to return
to Spain. Originally assigned to the Philippines, he was taken
ill and failed to reach his destination. His request was granted.
pp. 269-310
7—A report concerning eight Religious of the Order of St. Dominic
assigned as missionaries to the Province of Santisimo Rosario,
Philippines. It contains biographical data, an account of their
journey, and a list of expenses incurred.
pp. 311-384
8—Fray Joaquin Penalva, lay-brother of the Philippine missions of San
Agustin de las Cuebas, requests that he be allowed to stay in
the province of San Diego, Mexico. ‘
pp. 385-418
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9—Order that Fr. Gregorio Rodriguez, missionary of San Agustin de
las Cuebas, be provided with a cassock.
pp. 419423
10—Insistence of the Father Prior of San Jacinto that Fr. Juan de
Olave be assigned and sent to the missions of those Islands.
pp. 424-448
11—Royal decree ordering the Governor of the Philippines to give to
the admiral of the fleet, Don Felix Berenguer de Marquina, the
treasury funds held in Manila, discounting the situado it is en-
titled to.

pp. 449473
Volume 33
Philippines 1793-1799
1—Fr. Juan de la Consolacion, lay-religious of the Dominican mission
of San Jacinto, Philippines, complains that he had been deprived .
of his post by the appointment of others who had just arrived
from Spain.
pp. 1-44
2—A recommendation of the Captain-General of the Philippines that
Don Jose Manuel Reyes be made to pay his indebtedness to the
Casa Mortuoria of D. Vicente Memije.
pp. 45-116
3—Concerning allowances that should be given to Don Jose Tovar
which he was entitled to as first pilot of the frigate Aranzazu.
pp. 117-127
4—Concerning the dispute which arose between the Governor and
Captain-General of the Philippines and the Commandant of the
fleet in those waters, over the bill of lading of the frigate, Aran-
zazu, belonging to the Department of San Blas.
pp. 128-190
5—Concerning the wastes perpetuated in the provisions sent from
Puebla to Acapulco for the return of the San Andres in 1797.
pp. 199-238
6—The captain of the frigate, Don Jose Iturrigaray, presents claims
for payment of his salaries and allowances. [Illegible in some
parts.]
pp. 239-309
Volume 34
Philippines 1794-1795
1—Vagrants of Celaya being sent for service in the Royal navy.
pp. 1-22
2—That $59,000 and provisions for the frigate San Fernando from
the Philippines be given. Includes itemized tables of provisions
- given.
pp. 23-50

3—Report of the arrival of the ship from the Philippines, San Fer-
nando Magallanes, in Acapulco on November 27, 1794 and the an-
nouncement of the sale of its cargo and departure. Included are
lists of passengets, crews, cargoes and their respective owners.
‘ pp. 51-80
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1794 Exp. 4—Vagrants from Valle de Santiago and Salamanca—personal data
and other documents.
pp. 81-123
1794 Exp. 5-——Charges brought about and prepared by the alcalde, acting as
judge, against fourteen other vagrants.
: pp. 124-175
1795 Exp. 6—Concerning advances made to meet expenses of the Dominican
missionaries enroute to San Jacinto until they leave Acapulco.
pp. 176-188
1794 Fxp. 7—That aid be given in salaries and allowances to D. Pedro Piedra
Buena, Chaplain of the Navy, who went with the frigate Magalla-
nes,
, pp. 189-208
1795 Exp. 8-—Juan Delgado and Rafael Medina, artillery men of the frigate Ma-
gallanes request permission to stay in San Blas.
' pp. 209-214
{This Exposure ends on page 214]
Reel 17
[Continuation of Volume 34]
1795 Exp. 9—Papers regarding charges against Don Mariano Arroyo, for vice and
incorrigibility.
pp. 215-242
1795 Exp. 10—Papers on charges against Ignacio Guardia and Jose Uribe, for
vagrancy.
pp. 243-293
1795 Exp. 11—Papers related to the shipment to the Philippines of a box con-

taining the work, Hortus Malabaricus, sent to the Botanist Juan
de Cuellar of the Royal Otder.
pp. 294-310
1795 Exp. 12—Papers regarding payment in advance of the amount of $140.00
annually to each missionary of those maintained in China by
the Barefoot Franciscans of San Gregorio in Manila.
] pp. 311-340
Exp. 13—Papers regarding the news that the chain-gang for Acapulco should
leave with the vagrants assigned to serve His Majesty in the per-
manent regiment in Manila.*

pp. 341-383
Volume 35
1788-1808
1794 Exp. 1-—Papers regarding the excess beyond what was allowed by the per-

mit for goods delivered by the Philippine Frigate Magallanes, as
fixed by Regulation.
pp. 1-62°
1800 Exp. 2—On the retirement and salaries of the Ensign of the Frigate Don
Manuel Clemente and previous application to remain in the De-
partment of San Blas.
pp. 63-128

* No date is indicated for this exposure.
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3—On the salaries of Navy Surgeon Don Miguel Maria Jimenez.
pp. 129-172

4—Royal letter of the 27 of January of this year regarding defects
observed in the proceedings of the lawsuit on smuggling appre-
hended in the vessel San Jose de Gracia under the command of
Don Francisco Jose Basco.
pp. 173-233

5—Application of Juan de Ariza, artilleryman of the Brigade, to pro-
ceed to Spain,
pp. 234-276

6—On the assignment of Jose Maria, orphan of Don Pedro Garcia
de la Lama, to the permanent regiment in Manila, together with
the report made by Regular Mayor Don Sebastian de las Heras on
the excesses committed by the same and also a petition requesting
that he be set free so that he could be cured.
pp. 277-280

7—Information given by Don Pedro Garcia de la Lama affirming the
misconduct of his orphan Jose Maria.
pp. 281-300

8—Complaint presented by Don Nicolas Noriega, requesting that Don
Jose Garcia de la Lama be reprimanded for the excesses indicated.
pp. 301-317

9—On the permission requested by Fr. Don Claudio Latendas, Chap-
lain of the Royal Chapel of Manila, to be cured outside this
capital,
pp. 318326

10—Papers of Don Diego Dominguez Pitolin of the vessel Rey Carlos
on his stay in this Kingdom and the application made by his uncle
for his return to the Philippines.

pp. 327-338

11—Royal Order on the prorrogation for 10 years of the grace period
in which this Treasury will continue to pay the annual pension
of 100 pesos to the priests that maintain the Province of Sto.
Rosario of the Philippines in China and Tunking.
: pp. 339-344

12—Deserters among soldiers and sailors who were embarked and aided
in Acapulco to return to the Philippines, in the frigate Casualidad.
pp. 345-352

13—Papers related to the statement of Don Alejandro Parreno, Gov-
ernor of the Marianas Islands regarding payment of due salaries
“and continuation of those that would fall due.
pp. 353-338

14—On the amount that should be paid in advance for the transporta-
tion of the Ensign Don Jose Ramirez Portocarrero.
pp. 359-362

15—Papers regarding the conveyance of Don Jose Ramirez Portoca-
rrero, Ensign of the Infantry Regiment of Manila, by Don Domingo
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Goyenechea, Captain and Mate of the Frigate Casualidad, from
this port to that of Cavite.
pp. 363-377
1788 Exp. 16—Warrants issued by virtue of Superior Order of His Excellency
Don Matias Galvez, Viceroy Governor and Captain General of
New Spain, by the Magistrate of this city and Inspector General
of the Kingdom, for the apprehension of the individuals indicated.
pp. 378-436
1803 Exp. 17—The Governor of the Marianas Islands concerning the $20,000.00
to be used in Manila and to provide the needs of the troops
and other individuals who are to be sent.

pp. 437-440
1803 Exp. 18—Pardon for the disorder committed by Luis Montero Espinosa
Ramos of the frigate La Fama.
pp. 441-466
1802 Exp. 19—DPapers regarding the Ensign of the frigate, Don Manuel Cle-
mente,
pp. 467-491
1801 Exp. 20—Testimony on papers with instructions as to which prelate ought
to take Fr. Antonio Marquez of the Order of St. Dominic.
pp. 492-512
Volume 36
1800
1800 Exp. 1—On the restoration of the cost of the convoy which brought the

cargo shipped to this capital to the Royal Treasury of Accounts,
by the expedition of the frigate San Rafael.

pp. 1-15
1800 Exp. 2—Record and permit of entry in Acapulco of the frigate San Rafael
coming from Cavite,
pp. 1624
1800 Exp. 3—Papers of the Ministry of Acapulco on the departure of the fri-

gate San Rafael and whether it should carry twice its record and
the fruits it would wish to load, the Vesscl Magallanes and two
frigates having arrived.

pp. 25-29

1800 Exp. 4—Testimony of papers issued by virtue of Superior Order of His
Excellency, the Viceroy of New Spain regarding the deparrure of
the frigate San Rafael which sailed from Manila and came under
the command of its chief Don Andres Amsiburu.

pp. 30-40
[Starts with p. 13 of Exp. 4, Vol. 36 in Reel 17.]

1800 Exp. 5—Arrival of the frigate San Rafael alias Comercio de Manila with
products and goods from Manila and Asia, and petitions that
the Fair be held in Cuernavaca or San Agustin de las Cuevas,
and other points.

pp. 41-166

1800 Exp. G6—Request that duties be paid in Acapulco for the shipment made
on the frigate San Rafael, although said shipment was sold in this
Capital.

pp. 167-180
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7—Summary information aganist the C. Ab. Ydefonso Villegas of
the Second Company, and the Distinguished Soldier D. Jose Bar-
reiro of the third company, both accused as accomplices and in
favor of the escape planned by Don Francisco Navarro from
the galley of the Presidio del Organo.
pp. 181-206

8—Secret summary information against Don Francisco Navarro, in
order to verify the insult and threats made to the Lieutenant Don
Francisco Izquierdo, Commandant of this detachment on the night
of the 15th of October of the said year.
pp. 207-234

9—Royal Order regarding the destination of prisoners to said Islands,
and happenings relative to the escape of those who arrived on
the frigate Antitrite. There are provisions for them to work on
the road to Veracruz while waiting for transportation to their
destination.
pp. 235-252
10—Regarding the escape of various prisoners who came from Europe.
pp. 253-289
11—Regarding the escape from prison and arrest of ten deserters.
pp. 290-331
Vol. 37
1—Permission given by the Governor and Captain General of the
Philippines to three individuals of the frigate Aranzazu from the
above mentioned Department.
pp. 1-13
2—From the Administration or Customs of this Capital requesting the
calculation of prices of the goods shipped by the boat Magallanes,
in order to arrange for the appraisal and dispatch of said goods
in the Fair in Acapulco.
pp. 14-32
3—Expedient regarding prices of Chinese goods shipped on the boat
Magallanes.
pp. 33-56
4—From the Father Prior of the province of Agustines of said
Islands, regarding the presentation of salaries due to Religious em-
ployed in the Empire of China.
pp. 57-83
5-—From Dor Abraham de Poterat, Navy Lieutenant, regarding his
coming to this Kingdom in order to cure his disease he asks
permission to go to the Peninsula and seeks financial help charge-
able against his services.
pp. 84-108
6—From Friars Jose Pelaez and Felipe Grarena, who just arrived from
the Philippines, requesting permission to proceed to Spain.
pp. 109-113
7—From the Navy Lieutenant Don Abraham de Poterat, requesting
permisison to embark in an official boat for Europe through
Jamaica or in any other neutral boat.
pp. 114-117
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8-—From Don Luis Galabert, requesting aid from the company attor-
ney (or officer) in order to return to Spain,
pp. 118-131

9.From Don Jose Ayala, elected judge of the Audiencia of Manila,
regarding payment of salaries in accordance with the Royal Order
which he has with him, the original of which was received
directly.
pp. 132-149
10—Request that certain individuals from the Asian Squadron now in
the service of the Department of San Blas be reinstated.
pp. 150-156

11—Friar Pedro de San Pascual, of the barefoot Franciscan order of
the Province of San Gregorio, requesting permission to proceed
to Spain.
pp. 157-165
12—Papers or charges against Jose Miguel Jurado for having deserted.
pp.. 166-177
13—Regarding the destination of Jose Maria Esteban to this province
on petition of his father.
pp. 178-193
14.—Advance payment to St. D. Juan Jose de Elizalde and to the
Navy Lieutenant D. Angel Crespo in order to make their trip to
the Philippines.
pp. 194-198

. 15—Regarding the drawing of the pension of the Cannoner (Canonjia

Supresa) of Manila done on the 11th of this April.

pp. 199-202
Document pertaining to the Missions in China. (This document
does not appear in the Index.)

pp. 203-219

Antonio de Castro, second carpenter of the Armada, who came
from the Asia Squadron requests to be transported to Spain. (This
document does not appear in the Index.)

pp 220-223

From Jose Ramirez Portocarreno Sub-lieutenant of the permanent
Regiment of Manila; gives information of having left Cadiz on the
20th of March of 1800 in order to be transported to his destina-
tion. (This document does not appear in the Index.)
pp 224-253
1—From the Governor, requesting that 4 boxes of incendiary bullets
and “palanquetes” (bar-shots) be sent to Spain. '
pp. 1-28
2.—Sending of $500,000 on the frigate Pilar as delayed payments from
anterior boats,
pp. 29-67
3..From D. Santiago Ayala requesting shipment on the frigate Pilar
of $20,000 with premium of 17 2/3%.
pp. 68-84



1800

1799

1799

1800

1800

1800

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

PHILIPPINE HISTORICAL DOCUMENTS 167

4—License to ship $20,000 or more on the account of the Compania
Filipinas on the frigate Pilar,
pp. 85-148

5—Appointment of Maestro de Plata for the goods shipped on the
frigate Pilar. The Commandant Don Miguel de Zapian was so
commissioned.
pp. 140-170
6—Vagabonds sent to Manila on the frigate Pilar during its last re-
turn trip made in March 1800.
pp. 171-253
7—Charges against Don Juan Francisco Vasquez for excesses.
pp. 254-298
8—Petition of Da. Lutgarda Rubin de Celis that her son, Don Esteban
Sovaya, be assigned to Manila as a distinguished soldier.
pp. 299-310
Vol. 39
1—Permission to remain ashore requested by the acting Chaplain
of the frigate Pilar, Friar Juan Bravo.
pp. 1-88
Reel 19

[Continuation of Vol. 39, Reel 18, Exp. 1. This reel starts with page 47 of Exp. 1.]
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2—The treasury officials report missing instructions among the papers
sent to Acapulco for remittance to the Philippines.
pp. 89-179
3—Report on the wasted efforts involved by the absence of instruc-
tions regarding the dispatch of the war vessel Montanez and the
ship Rey Catlos.
pp. 180216
4-—Papers concerning the pardon of the artillery man of the navy,
Jose Manuel Orta.
pp. 217-224
5--Regarding the assistance to Don Antonio Chucon y Conde, lieute-
nant of the Regiment in Manila.
pp. 225-235
6—A report on the condition of the provisions sent through the
frigate Conecepcion and the surpluses included therein.
pp. 236-258
7—Regarding the advances made to the officials of the Philippines
in accordance with the last royal order. [Some portions are ille-
gible.]
pp. 259-264
8—Why two Religious Cayetano Gil Corono and Fray Antonio Pages
should not be sent to the missions of the Islands.
pp. 265-281
9—Documents on the compliance of a Royal Decree providing that
61,000 pesos plus of secular revenues of Manila be sent to Spain.
pp. 282292
10-—Concerning the material help to be given to the members of the
mission at San Agustin de las Cuevas who are assigned to San
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Gregorio Province, Philippines and aid to the members who are

sick.
pp. 293-297
11—The bills of lading of the San Fernando alias Magallanes.
) pp. 298-329

12—The Acapulco Office reports having permitted the Commandant
of Manila to remit $8000 to pay the salaries of the crew of the
ships which carry his goods.

. pp. 330-355 .

13—An account of 25 Agustinian Recollects assigned to the province
of Dulce Nombre de Filipinas, including personal data of every-
one of them.

pp. 356-362
14—Antonio Minan, deserter from the Asian squadron, petitions a
pardon.
pp. 363-372

15—A new royal decree for the Compania de Filipinas formerly issued
July 12, 1803.
pp. 373-391
16—Donation made in 1799 by the Commandant and members of the
Asian Squadron, and the royal decree of June 21, 1804 inquiring
whether or not this was discounted from the situado.
pp. 392-400
17—Royal decree requiring that the benefices of vacant posts which
the Governor of the said Islands had requested deducted from
the situado, be remitted to Spain.
pp. 401-404
18—Concerning the payment in the Philippines of the salaries of the
captain of the frigate, Don Salvador Melendrez.
pp. 405-420
19—Regarding the assignment to the Philippine Islands of Captain
Don Diego Sucre.
. pp. 421-445
20—Don Ildefonso La Riva, constable of the ship, asks for payment
of balance of salaries due him.
pp. 446-449
Vol. 40
1—Manifest of cargo brought to Acapulco by the Montanez and the
Rey Carlos, including a list of passengers and crew of each boat.
boat.
pp. 1-18
2—The extension of the Fair for the goods of the war vessel the
Montanez and the ship Rey Catlos until February 16.
pp. 19-29

3—The agent of the Manila Tribunal of Commerce proclaims that
owners of the cargoes of the Montanez and the Rey Carlos should
guarantee payment of taxes to the treasury because of failure to
sell in the absence of a Fair.
pp. 30-43
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4—The regular subsidy and aid of half a million pesos specially re-
quested by the Governor of the Philippines to meet the expenses
of the Islands.
pp. 44-86
5—Concerning the deductions from the el situado of funds re-
ceived by private persons from the Treasury of the Islacds and
sending the trest to Spain.
pp. 87-93
6—The Governor reports about the duplication of the discount of
$9000 and more from the situado of the Islands, on account of
the properties of Don Alberto Jacinto Reyes, deceased.
pp. 94-111
7—That $56,563 be discounted from the situado of those Islands
and that the balance of what is due be remitted to Spain.
pp. 112-116
8—Assistance to the Asian squadron and its personnel. [Illegible in
the microfilm)
pp. 117-136
9—Saltpetre for the ship Rey Carlos sent to Manila.
pp. 137-148
10—The arbiters of the ship Rey Carlos ask that on the return trip
not only its cargo and that of the Montanez be doubled but also
all the privileges which the Commandant has in this Realm.
pp. 149-202
11—That $30,000 belonging to D. Jose Varela Cajigas be shipped.
pp. 203-211
12——Gratuitous permit granted to D. Gabriel de Yturve to ship $40,000
belonging to Colonel Felipe de Cerain of the Manila command,
subject to 7% tax.
pp. 212-217
13—Concerning the shipment of twice the amount of $2190 and 6
reals—the value of the goods brought from Manila by the steward
of His Excellency, Blas Jover y Estwes, and the restitution of
taxes paid in Acapulco.
pp. 218234 A
14—Concerning the shipment of 21,461 pesos and 4 granos which
Colonel D. Felipe de Cerain was allowed to ship in the Magallanes
in its voyage in 1800.
pp. 235-250

. 15—Esteban Veles de Escalante is allowed to ship $8000 and more

in favor of Don Juan Pablo Infante.
pp. 250-264

. 16—D. Francisco Alonso de Teran through D. Ventura de los Reyes

asks permission to ship $70,000 covered by previous permits.
pp. 265-276

. 17—Don Manuel Garcia Ierreros requests permission to ship in the

Montanez P20,137, 4 reals corresponding to the situado of the
Marianas during the current year.
pp. 277-280
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18-~The agent of the Royal Company reports the shipment to those
Islands of P130,000 which have been earned and which the Royal
Company has in Vera Cruz in the Montanez and Rey Carlos.
pp. 281-289

19-—The agent of the Company in those Islands reports about ship-
ping 46,176 pesos and 3 3/4 reals belonging to the Company,
the Montanez and Rey Carlos.
pp. 290-297

20-—Alms to the missionaries of the Marianas Islands, oil for the

lamps of their altars, and vestments of the Religious in the
Convent of Manila,

pp. 298-316
21—Resolution regarding the departure of the Montanez and the Rey
Catlos. v
pp. 317337

22—Provisions needed by the war vessel the Montanez for its return
voyage to those Islands.

pp. 338-350
23-Provisions of the Rey Carlos.
' T pp. 351-364
24—Medicines and instruments for the Botica Real of Manila.
pp. 315-373

25—Medicines for the provisional hospital of the squadron under the
command of Sr. Alava, established in Cavite.
pp. 374-383

26—Concerning the provisioning of the war vessel of His Majesty, the
Montanez, in medicines it needs for the return trip to the Philip-
pines. o
pp. 383-387
Reel 20
Vol. 41
Philippines 1800-1801

1-—That some deserters from the frigate Pilar be apprehended.
pp. 1-56

2—Regarding the rebates on duties on the damaged goods shipped on
‘the frigate San Rafael.
pp. 57-98

3—Regarding the reimbursement by the Navy Lieutenant Don Manuel
de Espinosa to the Royal Treasury of amounts due to the Treasury.
pp. 99-113

4-—-Official letters to the Governor of said Islands and the Com-
mandant of the Squadron of its seas, regarding the smuggled goods
on the frigate Pilar.
pp. 114-125
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5—Regarding payment of salaries of the Navy Ensign Don Eygenio
Cortes, and petition for aid to finance his trip from San Juan
to this Capital.
pp. 126-149

6—Transportation of Don Mauricio Connessin, Frenchman, from the
Philippines to this Kingdom, proceeding to Europe.
pp. 150-171

7—Regarding subministrations to the Navy Lieutenant Don Jose
Barona, who was transported from Manila on the frigate Pilar,
and who-is on his way to Spain.
- pp. 172-194
8—From friar Bartolome Gutierrez of the barefoot Agustinians, re-
questing permission to proceed to Spain.
pp. 195-196

9—That Manuel Hurtado de Mendoza, deserter from the frigate Fama,
should submit himself to the Asia Squadron and should be sepa-
rated from the Dragoons of Mexico, wherein he used to render
service.
pp. 197-236
10—Report of the Lieutenant of the frigate Don Vicente del Camino,
and his return to Spain. '
pp. 237-263

11—From the Navy Captain Don Juan Jose de Elizalde regarding pay-
ment of his salaries and those of Navy Lieutenant D. Angel Crespo
and two sailors.
pp. 264-323

Vol, 42

1—Regarding the religious Mission of the Order of Saint Francis which
administers the Province of San Gregorio, who had just arrived
from Spain and on the way to the Islands.
pp. 1-13
2—From Don Manuel Jose Lecaroz of the Comercio de Filipinas re-
garding the shipment of the boat Magallanes of various amounts
under ordinary permits.
pp. 14-29
3—The Artilleryman of the Squadron of Asia, Lorenzo Gregorio, who
fell ill in the port of San Blas requests aid in order to proceed to
Spain.
pp. 3045
4—Request from Don Antonio ‘de Llanos of the Comercio de Manila,
to ship 310 silver marks to those Islands.
pp. 30-45
5—Regarding compliance with the Royal Order providing for the
reduction by three percent of duties on the annual shipment
of the boats from said Island.
. pp. 50-60
6—Desertion of two Moors from the frigate Hardanger.
pp. 61-64
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7—Royal Order of the 29th of December of 1805, regarding ex-
traotdinary permit of the Comercio de Manila, to ship to the
port of Acapulco annually, products and goods from Asia during

the present war.
pp. 65-70

8—Regarding the salary due to Artillery Captain Don Manuel Lopez
of the Department of Manila.
pp. 71-78
9—Request of Don Luis Martin that his son, of the same name, be
assigned to four years of service to the Regiment of Manila as
punishment for being incorrigible.
pp. 79-93

10—Regarding destination of Don Juan Ygnacio Davila to eight years
service in the Regiment of Manila.
pp. 94-107

11—Complaint of Don Esteban Toscano, Sub-delegate of Chilapa,
against Don Manuel Romero de Leys, Captain of the Battalions
of Manila.
pp. 108-111

12—Regarding the verification of the cause for which Rafael Bejarano
was sent as prisoner to the Philippines.
pp. 112-142

13—Regarding the pass of Reverend Fr. Diegino, Friar Sanchez Tellez,
to the Hospicio de San Agustin de las Cuevas.
pp. 143-148

14—From the Judge of the Audiencia of Manila Don Yldefonso Ruis
de Ramirez, regarding adjustments of salaries which should be.
received.

pp. 149-170

15—Regarding passes of Rev. Frs. Diegino, Friar Francisco Tubino
and Joaquin Priorio to the province of San Gregorio, Philippines.
. pp. 179-197

16—Regarding payment of unpaid salaries of Don Diego Martinez de
Araque former Regent of the Royal Audiencia of Manila.
pp. 198-212

17—From Marcos Fernandez, first constable of the Marine Artillery
‘regarding his pardon for the crime of desertion.
pp. 213-218
18—From Don Jose Manuel Tobias, Navy Lieutenant regarding ad-
vance on salaries.
pp. 219-227
19—Request of Rev. Fr. Francisco Farnecio for a passport to Spain.
pp. 228-263
20—From Don Juan Ramireta Ustariz, Navy Lieutenant, regarding
advance salaries from 1811 to September of 1812,
pp. 264-266
21—Friar Simon de los Reyes, Director of the Hospicio de San Agus-
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tin de las Cuevas, states that the four reales a day paid him are
not sufficient for his subsistence.
pp. 267-270

22—Don Vicente Canales, assigned to 'the Naval station of Manila, re-
quests aid for his subsistence.
pp. 271-288

23—From Friar Simon de los Reyes, Director of the Hospicio de San
Agustin de las Cuevas, regarding the bad conduct of the choir
deacon Fr. Francisco Armengol.
pp. 289-300
Vol. 43
1—Declaration of duties chargeable on the shipment of $5,000 made
by Don Juan Carvajal on the boat Candelario which left for Guaya-
quil.
pp. 1-15
2—From Don Isidro Antonio de Icasa, regarding the shipment of
$35,000 to $40,000 to Peru.
pp. 16-28

3—Complaint against Don Mariano Ortiz, (ayudante de milicias) by
Don Manuel Romero de Leys, Captain of the New Battalions of
the Philippines.
pp. 2972

4—Request of Don Roque Vallente Sindico-of the province of San
Gregorio, in the Philippine Islands that the pensions assigned to
that order be handed to him.
pp. 73-87

5—The Rev. Fr. Director of the Hospicio de San Jacinto, requests
that the salaries assigned to the Missionaries of the province of
Santisimo Rosario of the Philippine Islands, delayed since the year
1811, be paid.
pp. 88-101

6—The Rev. Fr. Director of the Hospicio de San Nicolas, requests
payment of the delayed salaries due the Missionaries of the Ma-
rianas Island, since the year 1811. )
pp. 102111

7—Royal Order which abolishes the Nao de Acapulco and enables the
merchants of the Philippines to trade through the ports of Aca-
pulco and San Blas in private vessels under the permit of
$500,000 and one million on the return.
pp. 112-148
8—Copy of the royal order which confirms abolishment of the Nao
de Acapulco, dated 23 of April, 1815,
pp. 149-191
9—From the Rev. Fr. Director of the Hospicio de San Agustin de
las - Cuevas, regarding the payment of salaries corresponding to
the Religious of the Province of San Gregorio of the Philip-
pines and the Capuchins of Sta. Clara in Manila.
pp. 192-196
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10—Copy of the Expediente regarding the payments that the General
Treasury makes to the reverend sisters of the Monastery of Sta.
Clara of Manila, in the amount of one hundred and fifty pesos
monthly,
pp. 197-249

Reel 21

[This reel starts with page 208 of Exp. 10, Vol. 43.]
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1817
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Exp.

Exp.
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Exp.

" Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

11—Fr, Pedro Ruiz, missionary of the College of Santa Cruz of Quere-
taro, requests a permit to enable him to return to his home prov-
ince in Spain.
pp. 250-261
12—Concerning the report of Fathers Vicente Anastacio de Larramendi
Valero and Tomas Simon, missionaries of Santisimo Rosario in the
Philippines. :
pp. 262-275
13—Instructions to cover the balance of cash money for the return
voyage of the frigate Sta. Rita which is in San Blas, with silver
bars. [Some parts of the various documents are illegible.]
pp. 276-295
14—Papers concerning the permit to hold a fair in Tepic, given to the
fngate Sta Rita in February, 1817.
pp. 296-315
15—The permit for the return voyage to Manila of the frigate Sta.
Rita with seventy thousand pesos realized from its cargo is re-
ported. .
pp. 316321
16—The registry under which the frigate Sta. Rita was allowed to
leave the Port for Manila, on March 15, 1817. An itemized list
of its cargo [egible in some parts.]
pp. 322-344
17—Testimony on the official permit given for the sale of the last
cargo brought by the frigate Sta. Rita from Manila.
pp. 345-349
18—The permlt to hold a fair given by His Excellency the Viceroy
to the frigate Sta. Rita is attested to by its entry on page 17 of
the official records, under that title,
pp. 350-352
19—Testimony regarding the official title of the order of His Excel-
lency the Viceroy regarding the investigation of the exact amount
brought by the Sta. Rita to Manila. Because of the suppression
of the galleon trade, there was a move to recover the taxes paid
by three ships, 1nclud1ng the Sta. Rita, previous to the aboli-
tion.
pp. 353-365

20—The authorized commercial official of Manila writes that in’ as

much as the frigate Sta. Rita is due to arrive in San Blas soon,
it be allowed to discharge its cargo, hold a fair and return quickly
with the money realized in this and the previous trips.

pp. 366-387
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1817 Exp. 21—Attestation of the request made on behalf of Don Manuel Darvin
y Columbeer, that he be granted a permit to hold a fair in order
to sell the merchandize brought by the frigate Sta. Rita.

pp. 388-445
Vol. 44
1795-1796
1795 Exp. 1—Ordering the Augustinian missionary of the Hospicio de San Ni-

colas, Fr. Lorenzo del Santisimo Cristo de la Fee, to proceed to
the Philippines.

pp. 1-6
1795 Exp. 2—Concerning the payment of el situado for the Marianas Islands in
1793, 1794, and 1795.
pp. 7-23
1795 Exp. 3—To regulate the stock which can be shipped in the frigate Ma-
gallanes, in view of the circumstances of the war.
pp. 24-93
1795 Exp. 4—Incident regarding the loading of stock in the frigate Magallanes.
pp. 94-102
1795 Exp. 5-—Appeal of Dn. Juan Antonio and Dn. Teodoro Parrodi that they
be not sent to the army in the Philippines.
pp. 103-145
1795 Exp. 6-—Juan Antonio and Teodoro Parrodi explain that their assignment
to the army in the Philippines had been based on false testimonies.
pp. 146-157
1795 Exp. 7—The Father President of the Hospicio de San Jacinto requests per-

mission to ship $22,700 to the Philippines, obtained from stipends,
alms, and other incomes of the missionaries.

. pp. 158-166
1795 Exp. 8—Don Pedro Martinez Cavezon requests a permit to enable him to
travel via the Magallanes in its next trip to the Philippines.
pp. 167-175
1795 Exp. 9—Concerning the criminal charge of homicide filed against the

sailor Juan Sanchez of the frigate Magallanes committed on the
constable, Juan Roldan.

pp. 176-181
1795 Exp. 10—Charges of vagrancy, idleness, bad conduct brought against Jose
Mariano Ordonez, fifteen years old, fugitive in Mexico.
pp. 182-213
1795 Exp. 11—The Treasurer of the Franciscan missionaries of the Hospicio de
San Agustin de las Cuevas reports the transportation expenses to
Acapulco.
pp. 214-225
1795 Exp. 12—Deserters and sick men from the frigate Magallanes who were left
in Acapulco.
pb. 226-242
1795 Exp. 13—The lieutenant of the navy Don Joaquin de Marquina requests

permission that he be allowed to ship thirty marks of wrought
silver and ten thousand pesos to Spain.
pp. 243-245
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Exp. 14—Orders that Lieutenant Joaquin de Marquina be allowed passage
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in the war vessel Sta. Agueda.
pp. 246-265

. 15—Documents concerning the investigation of the escape from the

Castillo de San Juan de Ulna of Don Teodoro Parrodi, assigned
to the regular army of Cuba.
pp. 266-304
Vol. 45

1798 [sic]-1814

1—Royal decree of January 29, 1798 concerning the investigation of
the rents of the haciendas belonging to the Agustinian Recollects
of the province of San Nicolas de Tolentino, Philippines.
pp. 1-38

2—The president of the Hospicio de San Nicolas accuses Fray Jose

Gonzales Copacabana of secreting more than a thousand pesos,
including replies in defense by the accused.
pp. 39-107

3—Concerning the arrival at the Port of Veracruz, aboard the San
Ramon and San Leandro from Cadiz, of eleven confirmed crim-
inals being sent to the Philippines and the request of four of
them that they be not taken to Manila.
pp. 108-127

4—Draft of payments made by the Philippines to individuals from
the funds of the Royal Treasury of Mexico, chargeable to the
Donations Fund.
pp. 128-148

5—Account of the brig San Carlos, Branch of Shipyards.
pp. 149-184

6—Commission under which the brig San Carlos left San Blas for
Manila, under the command of the Lieutenant of the Navy, D.
Jacobo Murfi.
pp. 185-196

7—Itemized list of expenses incurred in Manila by the brig San
Carlos.
pp. 197240

8—Concerning the sale of 550 quintals of steel rings which the
Philippine vessel Rey Fernando brought as ballast.
pp. 241-262

9-—Royal decree of August 23, 1813 providing that the amount of
$171,528 which had been sent to Mexico in a bill of exchange
by the Governor of Manila in the form of aid, should be remitted
to the Peninsula.
pp. 263-339

[This reel ends on page 276 of this exposure.]

Reel 22
Volume 45

[Starts with p. 277 of Exp. 9, Reel 21]
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10—On the shipment of 50,000 playing cards from Manila.
pp. 340-365
Volume 46
1809-1813

1—Testimony of the Royal Order of April 19, 1796 and subsequent
proceedings procuring the return to the Military Funds for Wi-
dows and Orphans of the amount of $500 which was unduly
paid to Dona Francisca Marquez, widow of the Quarter-Mastet-
General Camarines.
pp. 1-43

2—Papers regarding the remittance to Manila of two hundred thou-
sand playing cards. A
pp. 44-62
3—Papers regarding the payment of stipends of Missionaries of the
Province of the Most Holy Rosary of the Philippines.
pp. 63-70

4-—Lawsuit due to wunchaste acts, against Joaquin Calderon who
came from Spain and was bound for the Philippines.
pp. 71-183

5-—The Rev. Fr. Agustin de la Virgen de la Pena, President of the
Hospicio de San Nicolas, regarding the request that through
this treasury, the stipends and the aid for priests who work in
the Marianas Islands be fully paid.
pp. 184-191

6—Royal Order in which Don Juan Utariz, Frigate Lieutenant, is as-
signed to command the Philippine vessel.
pp. 192-235

7—Papers regarding the illness of European prisoners who were
kept in jail and bound for Manila,
pp. 236-259

8—Papers about Mr. Melchor de Guerra Leyva, Lieutenant of the
Hunters of the Philippines, and his joining the Group of In-
valids.
pp. 260-279

9—Papers in which Mr. Melchor de Guerra Leyva, a retired lieutenant
of the Veteran Battalion of the Prince in the Philippines, requests
that he be granted two or three payments.
pp. 280-334

10—Papers in which Mr. Emeterio Pastor requests that he be per-
mitted to ship, through San Blas, $50,000 for Manila.
pp. 335-341

Volume 47
1810-1818

1—Papers which give information that in Guadalajara, upon order
of the Administrative Board of that Province, the duty of 3%
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had beén collected from the goods brought in from Manila by the
vessel Fidelidad.
pp. 1-20
2—Mr. Francisco Alonso de Teran on having demanded in Guadala-
jara the War Aid duty on the cargo of the Philippine vessel Rey

Fernando.
pp. 21-64
3—On the supply of medicines for the Military Hospital of Manila.
pp. 65-76

4—Arrival at San Blas of the private vessel Resolucion coming from
Manila with cargo and without any inspection.
pp. 77-186
5—On the collection and remittance to Spain of the amount of three
bank drafts from Manila belonging to the War Aid Branch.
pp. 187-210
6—Papers on stipends and -aid for the Agustinian-Recollect mission-
aries of the Marianas Islands.
pp. 211221
7—DPapers regarding the 2nd sale in the fair of the goods from the
Philippine vessel Magallanes and taxes paid.
pp. 222-289
8—Testimony of judicial proceedings as consequence of the Super-
ior Order of April 5 of last year, regarding the arrival at San
Blas of the vessel Resolucion from Manila with cargo and
without port inspection.
pp. 290-325
9——-Papers on the payment of a bank draft for $4,400 directed by
Mz, Manuel Cacho 'y Herrera of the Manila Commerce against
Lieutenant Colonel Antonio Alonso de Teran.
pp. 326-353

10—Papers on the inquiry as to the whereabouts of the astronomical
papers and instruments of his Majesty, which were left due to the
death of Juan.Bernace, captain of the frigate.
pp. 354-359

11—Royal Order to get back the astronomical and hydrographical
instruments and papers which were in the hands of Captain Juan
Bernace.
pp. 360-375

12—Papers regarding the personal description and allowance of Fr.
Juan .Cortes, a Franciscan priest assigned to the Missions of St.
Gregory.
pp. 376-389
Reel 23

[Vol. 47 is continued starting with p. 382 of Exp. 12.]

1819

Exp.

13—The Agent of Commerce in Manila writes about the abuses com-
mitted in Acapulco with regard to the mamfest of goods from
the P}nhppmes
pp. 390-417
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14—The Reverend Father President of the Hospicio de San Agustin
de las Cuevas, writes about the reimbursement of expenses incur-
red by three Religious who came from Vera Cruz to this Capital.
pp. 418-422
Vol. 48
1801-1819

1—Arrival at San Blas of the frigate San Rafael alias La Palas, owned
by the Royal Company, asking for asistance to continue its vo-
yage to Lima
pp. 1-63
2—About recruiting missionaries for the Province of San Gregorio,
Philippines.
pp. 64-133
3—Don Manuel Valero, pilot, who deserted the Montanez.
pp. 134-156
4—Don Francisco Mariano Carrillo, Sergeant guard of the Philippine
Government, claiming pay for four recruits.
pp. 157-181

5—The Ensign of the Navy Don Francisco Pinedo y Anuncivay who
came from Asia to go to Spain became ill in San Blas.
pp. 182-223

6—Don Francisco Patino, resident of Manila, requests permission to
ship 20,976 pesos and 4 reals to those Islands.
: pp. 224-234

7—The Vicar of the Hospicio de San Jacinto, writes to the Treasurer
about the reimbursement of one-third of the expenses incurred by
the Religious who go to those Islands.
pp. 235-256
8—Fr. Jose Segui, missionary of China asks that he be given the $100
annually allowed to him.
pp. 257-261

9—Aid given by the alferez of the Spanish cavalry to Don Ramon
Maria Henry.
pp. 262-272

10—That Fr. Vicente Fernandez and Fr. Domingo Aborasturi, lay
brothers who came with the mission destined to the Philippines
be left in this province [Mexico] in order to assist the Father
Vicar of San Jacinto.

pp. 273-282
11—Royal order about the Recollect missionaries on their way to the
Philippines.
pp. 283-297

12—Don Crispin Gonzalez del Rivero requests a permit to go to the
Philippines.
pp. 298-305
13—Royal order about the Augustinian misisonaries on their way to
the Philippines.
pp. 306-320
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Vol. 49
1817-1821
1--The chief auditor of San Blas requires payment to the Treasury
of taxes on all vessels arriving at this port.
pp. 1-6
2—Don Ygnacio Ampaneda seeks a permit to ship to Manila 12,876
pesos and 7 reals.
. pp. 7-29
3—The Auditor of San Blas asks that copies of all Philippine regu-
lations concerning the despatch of vessels from Manila, including
orders issued from Spain, be sent to him.
pp. 30-38
4—Don Alonso Morgado, captain and owner of the frigate Maria from
the Philippines requests a permit to ship $60,000, the returns of
the cargo of the ship.
pp. 39-47
5—Don Francisco Velez Escalante requests a permit to ship $2,160
realized from the sale of some tin-plates belonging to the Exche-
quer of Manila.
pp. 48-69
6—Concerning the goods left in Upper California by the brig San
Ruperto, from the cargo it brought from the Philippines.
pp. 70-153
7—Don Alfonso Morgfiado, captain of the frigate Maria which came
from Manila reports the purchase in Acapulco of 20 quintals of
copper bullets melted by the Insurgents.
pp. 154-158
8-—Final disposition of 20 quintals of bronze which upon orders of
the Royal Exchequer and of the Central government were held in
this place by its Governor, Lieutenant Colonel D. Agustin de la
Vina,
pp. 159-175
9—Arrival at the Port of San Blas of the brig San Ruperto alias El
Aventurero which came from the Philippines with a cargo of met-
chandize.
pp. 176-214

. 10—That vessels from Manila be allowed to carry not only double the

value of their cargoes but also all the money realized therefrom.
pp. 215-226

11-~Royal decree approving all the steps taken about the payment of

expenses in San Blas incurred by the expedition of the Magal-
lanes.
pp, 227-231

. 12—Concerning the embarcation, chargeable to the Treasury, of Fr.

Francisco Angel Pumarada, missionary of the Province of San
Gregorio, Philippines.
pp. 232-242

13—The Reverend Father-President of the Hospicio de San Agustin de

las Cuevas, requests that supplies of medicine for the Religious
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of San Gregorio province, Philippines, be sent and that they be
given what is due them.
pp. 263-281
14—A report of the Religious missionaries of San Gregorio, Philippines,
Fr. Anastacio Carrascal, Fr. Francisco Valuerde, and Fr. Francisco
de la Soledad.
pp. 263-281
15—Royal decree of September 25, 1818 reiterating previous orders
regarding the suppression of the galleon trade of the Philippines.
pp. 282-290
16—Inquiry as to whether the permit granted to Ventura de los Reyes
to return with the value of the goods meant double the amount

or only the value of the sale.
pp. 291-309

17—Concerning 174 pesos in taxes which should be collected on the
excess cargo brought by the frigates Carmen and Rita from the
Philippines, that is, in excess of double the value of their cargo.

pp. 310-341

. 18—Regarding the levy in Acapulco of 9% duties on cotton goods

brought by the frigate Paz.
pp. 342-378

. 19—Don Antonio Rocha, Captain and owner of the frigate Paz which

came from Manila, requests permission to have this vessel pass
the winter in Guaymas.
pp. 379-383

20—The Reverend Father-President of the Hospicio de San Agustin
de las Cuevas requests the reimbursement of expenses incurred
by three Religious, amounting to $146.03 for laundry and clothes.

pp. 384-403

. 21—Concerning aid for the Religious Fr. Alonso Ramos, Fr. Victoriano

de Torrejoncillo, Fr, Camilo de Tordellejo; and Fr. Vicente de la
Puebla who arrived from Spain enroute to the Philippines.
pp. 404-406

22—Don Ramon de Zuniga requests a permit to ship $58,513, double
the value of the goods brought from Manila by the brig Felix in
April, 1819.
pp. 407-425

23—The Father-President of the Hospicio de San Agustin de la Cuevas
asks for reimbursement of the travel expenses, from Vera Cruz to
this city, of four Religious who arrived from Spain enroute to the
Islands.
pp. 426-433

23a—[This exposure does not appear in the original index but is found
in the reel.]-—Transfer to Manila of the Religious belonging to
the Province of San Gregorio, Philippines: Fr. Tomas Torres, Fr.
Alonso Ramos, Fr. Victoriano de Torrejoncillo, Fr. Camilo Tordel-
lejo, Fr. Vicente de la Puebla, and Fr. Manuel Sancho.
pp. 434-452
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. 24—The delay in Tepacuaquilco of six Religious of the Province of

San Gregorio, Philippines who are enroute to Acapulco.
pp. 453-457

. 25—Concerning the recovery of funds chargeable to Don Manuel

Areytza, Don Gabriel Yturbe and Don Leonardo Alvarez, which
the Manila office had sent to this city.
pp. 458-467
Reel 24
Vol. 50
1801-1821
1—The arbitrator of the frigate San Rafael reports the taxes on the
rattan goods brought by the above-mentioned vessel. The docu-
ment is officially labelled thus.
pp. 1-25
2—Don Jose Maria Migom asks that Don Bernardo de Sarasa be as-
signed as a distinguished soldier to the regular regiment of Man-
“ila.
pp. 26-45
3—Inquiry into how long an imprisonment Jose Martel, deserter
from Manila who was apprehended in Veracruz, should have.
pp. 46-59

4—Notice regarding the arrest and remission to Manila of Manuel
Lopez, deserter of the army there. Contains affiliation papers, des-
cription of the man, and a copy of the decision to have him ar-
rested.
pp. 60-66

5—Juan Ignacio Batalon, sentenced criminal, requests that he be
allowed to complete his term of imprisonment in one of the In-
fantry Regiments of this realm. [Several pages of the documents
on this subject are illegible.]
pp. 67-84

6—A financial report of the Captain of the frigate, Don Ramon de
Ortize y Otanez and the request to ship $5000 cash for soldiers
and $3000 more for the expenses of the trip and port expenses.

pp. 85-130

7—A request to expedite the license so that the Reverend Father
Francisco Munoz of the Hospicio de San Jacinto can proceed to
Veracruz and depart for Spain.

pp. 131-142

8—Fr, Pelayo de Copacavana, lay brother ot the Recollects of the
Philippines seeks a license to be transferred to Spain; an account
of his activities is also included. [Badly exposed films.]
pp. 143-193

9—Indorsement by the Father Provincial of San Francisco of a pre-
vious request for aid to the Religious of his Order, made by the
central government to the Viceroy of New Spain. He explains
why the assistance is necessary. [Illegible in some parts.]
pp. 194-233
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1818 Exp. 10—Excerpts -of the operations of the insurgent frigate named La Ai-
gentina in the Philippines and orders of the central government
of the Islands to pursue it.

pp. 234-255

1818 Exp. 11—Attestation of the papers presented by the three defendant-priests
Don Jose Maria Guiza and Don Nicolas Caballero, where they
asked that the absolute pardon of February 25, 1817 be applied

to them.
pp. 256-304
Vol. 51
1801-1802
1801 Exp. 1—Confidential inquiry of the Tribunal del Consulado of Manila con-

cerning what authority the Governor of the Islands had in ap-
pointing the mate of the Montanez. The documents questioned
the appointment of Jose Feria and recommended that of Manuel

Lecaros.
pp. 1-17
1802 Exp. 2—Don Jose Fernandez writes about the position of mate of the
Rey Carlos and the Montanez.
p. 18
1801 Exp. 3—Confidential papers about the positions of mate.
pp. 19-20
1801 Exp. 4—Official notice sent by the Real Tribunal del Consulado to the

Governor concerning the appointment of Jose Fernandez as purser
of the Rey Carlos.

pp. 21-53
1802 Exp. 5—Remittance of the parcel of letters from Spain destined for the
Governor of Manila and the Commandant of the Asian fleet.
pp. 54-60
1801 Exp. 6—Correspondence with the Governor of the Philippines.
pp. 61-89
1801 Exp. 7—Duplicates of correspondence which have been sent to the Com-
mandant of the Asian fleet for the Montanez, brought by the
Rey Carlos.
pp. 90-98
1801 Exp. 8—Estimate of the funds needed for the maintenance of three ves-

sels and four frigates composing the fleet destined for Asia, also
for its commandant, Ignacio Maria de Alava, who is to head the
fleet in 1802; includes his backpay and an itemized list of needs.

. pp. 94-121
1802 Exp. 9—Correspondence with the Acapulco office.
_ pp. 122-134
1802 Exp. 10—Correspondence with the Commandant of the Montanez.
pp. 135-160
1801 Exp. 11—Papers on the replacement of 27 copper plates given to the Mon-
tanez by the Acapulco office.
pp. 161-174

1801 Exp. 12—Dna. Maria Tomasa Lasaigne requests a license to go to the Philip-
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pines where her husband is assigned, accompanied by a daughter
1]

and a maid.
pp. 175-180
13—The retirement of the Commandment of the Montanez and his
relief.
’ pp. 181-184
14—Correspondence with the Commandant of the Rey Catlos.
pp. 185-192
15—Inventories of the Montanez and the Rey Carlos.
pp. 193-236
16—Vagrants sent to the Philippines aboard the war vessel Montanez.
pp. 237-353

17—Manuel Mendoza, sentenced to setve in the Manila regiment for
vagrancy was found enlisted in the provincial battalion of Oaxaca.
pp. 354-365

18—Jose Francisco Fernandez, vagrant destined for Manila, reports that
he can not comply because he is wounded,
pp. 366-377

19—Measures to recruit men in Acapulco needed by the frigate Fama
and Lucia.

pp. 378-395
20—Measures to recruit persons needed by the war vesel Montanez.
pp. 396-421
Vol. 52
1804-1809

1—About the retirement from the service of Don Jose Bas, adjutant
of the new battalions of Manila.
pp. 1-40

2—D. Jose Joaquin de Trigoyen, second pilot of the Magallanes
writes about his sickness and need for help.
pp. 41-51

3—Fr, Jose Munoz of the Order of Preachers of the Philippines Is-
lands asks the Royal officials to accept two-thirds of the payment
of eight Religious who came in the Magallanes just as they did
with the 32 others out of the 40 who came in the ship.
pp. 52-59

3a—[This document does not appear in the original index but is
found in this reel.] Concerning the salaries of the Captain of
the vessel, Don Joaquin Zarauz.
pp. 60-73

4—The Ensign of the frigate, Don Francisco Dufretay, requests
payment of expenses incurred by him during his travel by land.
pp. 74-85

5—Fr. Jose de Loreto requests a permit to return to Spain.
pp. 86-94
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1806 Exp. 6—DPapers on the appointment of a surgeon for the frigate Hardanger;
the surgeon had been D. Juan de Molina of the Acapulco Hos-
pital who was being replaced by Don Antonio Sanchez de Linares.

pp. 95-127
[The reel ends on page 100 of Exp. 6.]
Reel 25
[Starts with p. 99 of Exp. 6, Vol. 52.] )
1806 Exp. 7—Testimony of the step taken as to whether or not the Com-

mandant of the Nao Don Angel Crespo should reimburse the
Royal Treasury with the excess in allowances which apparently he
collected in behalf of members of the Royal Expedition from New
Spain in the said Nao to these Islands.

pp. 128229
1806 Exp. 8—Charges against the deserter Juan Casimiro Quijano, groom of the
frigate San Rafael.
pp. 230-257
1806 Exp. 9—Cristobal Jimenez Rumbo, son of Francisco from the Villa de Mon-

talban, 40 years old, sentenced by the Royal Chancery of Grana-
da for robbery, violent attacks and other excesses to 10 years im-
prisonment in the Philippines; he cannot leave the Philippines
upon completion of the sentences without a permit from the
above court.
pp. 258-266
1807 Exp. 10—Whether or not to collect $70 from the Lieutenant of Engineers
Don Fernando Laserna which were given him for his transport-
ation in the Habana.
pp. 267-274
1807 Exp. 11—Don Valentin de Borda y Shanchez, major of the provincial militia
of Manila writes that the amount of $640 be paid to the general
funds from the situado remissible to the Philippines, an amount
owed to these funds.
pp. 275-280
1807 Exp. 12—Don Marjano Ortiz, adjutant of the battalions in the Philippines
writes about payment of salaries.
pp. 281-286

1807 Exp. 13—Don Angel Crespo, captain of the frigate, wants his allowances and
expenses of traveling by land paid to him.
pp. 287-306

1809 Exp. 14—Concerning the payment of salaries of the Governor and troops of the
Marianas Islands.

pp. 307-326
1808 Exp. 15—Concerning the apprehension of deserters who abandoned the ves-
sel Magallanes when it left for Caribe.
pp. 327342
1808 Exp. 16—The Ensign of the Navy Don Gonzalo Ulloa commissioned to the

Philippines asks a permit to bring upon his return the amount
of his salaries and allowances.
pp. 343-347
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Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp
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. 17—That 75,000 pesos be paid by the agent of the Royal Company

of the Philippines to the general fund.
pp. 348-358

. 18—The Governor of the Philippines asks that 14 important payments

of $53,599 be disbursed from these funds and placed at the dis-
position of the President of Castilla.
pp. 359-366

Vol. 53
1802-1815

1—Arrival of the frigate Nuestra Senora de Guia alias La Casualidad
with a cargo of fruits and other goods from China and the
Philippines, by virtue of a special permit given by the Governor
of the Islands on the strength of the Royal Order dated May
18, 1779. The claim of the mate about its leaving with the
correspondence and manifest,
pp. 1-40
2—Despatch of the Acapulco office announcing it had allowed the
frigate Casualidad to discharge its cargo; it had inspected and
examined the manifests, and had indicated the results of the
inspection.
: pp. 45-120
3—Don Domingo Coyenechea, captain and master of the frigate
Casualidad reports the certificate of entry.
pp. 121-129
4—Concerning the return to the Royal Treasury of $116 and 6 reals
owed by Don Jose Blanchie, construction officer.
pp. 130-134
5—Agustin Blanco, sergeant who ‘deserted the new -battalions of the
Philippines petitions a pardon.
pp.- 135-193
6—Insanity of the second pilot of the frigate Hardanger and his re-
lief by Don Jose de Yrigoyen, officer of the same class from
the Magallanes.
pp. 194-205 -
7—Nicolas Becerra of the Agustinian Order, Province of San Nicolas
Tolentino, Philippines, requests permission to stay in this realm
until he has fully recuperated from illness.
pp. 206-239
8—A log book of seven Recollects assigned to the Philippines who
came aboard the frigate Nuestra Senora de los Dolores alias La
Medea; also concerning their” stipends and clothing expenses.
pp. 240-250
9—Royal Order of February 1808 which arranges the sending to the
Philippines of persons from the realm who can take over and
exercise the duties of positions in the Royal Treasury which are
vacant.
- pp. 251-253

. 10—Royal order of April 16, 1809 about the creation of a new pro-

visional command for the administration of the Compania de Filipi-
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nas and the prohibition of the orders issued on December +19,
1808 by Don Martin Antonio de Huizzi, commissioner of the

pp. 254-286

11—About the retention at the Port of San Blas of the corvette Fide-

lidad which came from Manila, for regular inspection.

pp. 287-323

pp. 324-349

. 12—That the frigate Concepclon be excluded from the naval station
of San Blas and the necessity of its immediate replacement. .

13——The cuttmg of timber for the replacement of the frigate Con-

pp. 350-353

14—The Revercnd Fathet-president .of the Hospicio de Sto. Tomas
writes “about. the embarcation of .15 missionaries for the Phlhp-

pp. 354-369

15—Royal order about the destination of the children who came with

“pp. 370-383
6—The ‘Officials of the General Treasury report on the difficulties

- of -collecting from Don. Antonio Alonso de Teran the payment of
two disbursements madé by Don Felix Cacho and Don Manuel

pp. 384-410

17—The Commandmant of the Rey Fernando informs on the .condition
of its vessel when it left San Blas for Manila and complains of

the meager attention given by the President of Guadalajara.

pp: 411-424

18—Don Jose Enrique de Aparicio, Revenue officer of Cuernavaca
awrites about facilitating the procurement of galleta [carbon'f’] for

the frigate Victoria W}nch is found in Acapulco.

pp. 425-433

19—The Treasurer of the Religious Missionaries of San Gregorio, Phil-
ippines, requests permision to ship three boxes of medicines, free

pp. 434-447

l—Reglmental rosters for épemflc grades in \ the services of dlfferent

2——Desert1on and apprehension of Salvador Prades

same Company.
Exp.
Exp
. Exp.
cepcion.
Exp.
pines.
Exp.
the expedition of the Vacuna.
Exp. 1
"Cacho from the Philippines.
Exp.
Exp.
Exp.
of charge.
Vol. 54
11803-1804
. Exp
- Infantry Regiments,
Exp.

pp. 1-70

pp. 71-77

" 3—+Regimental rosters coming”from persons sent to ‘the Philippines
" who failed to file thém and should be remitted as soon as pos-

sible.’

pp. 78-114
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1803

[This reel ends on p. 115.]

Exp.

ASIAN STUDIES

4—The Commandant of the battalions in the Philippines asks about
instructions as to how much of what has been saved the officials

can ship.
pp. 115-168

Reel 26

[Vol. 54, Exp. 4 is continued, starting with p. 116. The real title erroneously has

“Vol. 55.”]
1803

1803

1803

1803

1803

1803

1803

1803

1803

1804

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

EXP;

Exp

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

5—An account of the arrangements made on the occasion of the
death and funeral of Don Pedro Escudero, Lieutenant of the new
battalions of Manila, who died enroute at the Villas de Xalapa.
pp. 169-262
6—Concerning the necessity of constructing beds and other articles
to house persons in Acapulco assigned to the new battalions of
the Philippines; twenty-five people of an estimated 200 have al-
ready left Spain.
pp. 263-276

Vol. 55
1803-1804

1—Despatch concerning the persons coming from Spain for the new
battalions of the Philippines. This was mentioned in a letter, num-
ber 249 dated August 29, 1803.
pp. 1-112
2—Don Joaquin Iguacer, 2nd lieutenant of the Infantry Regiment of
the King writes concerning his position.
pp. 113-116
3—The Intendant writes about discounting 416 pesos and 1/2 real
from the Treasury given to the Lieutenant of Artilléery Don Celes-
tino Cordoncillo who is assigned to the Philippines.
pp. 117-133

. 4—Concerning the assistance given to the officers and men of the new

battalions of the Philippines for their transport to their destina-
tion.
pp. 134-142
5—The Lieutenant of Artillery, Don Celestino Cordoncillo, assighed
to Manila writes about his pay.
pp. 143-152
6-—The Lieutenant Colonel of Engineers, Don Ildefonso de Aragon,
requests the transport of his wife and servants. He cites pre-
cedents, ordinances, etc. entitling him to the privilege.
pp. 153-335
7—Regarding salaries of the Lieutenant Colonel of Engineers, Don
Ildefonso de Aragon.
pp. 336-393
8—Exchanges between Captain Don Mateo Lamba and Don Jose
Martinez regarding the charges of quackery filed against Lieute-
nant Jose Sebastian. [Illegible in many parts.]
pp. 394-402
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9-—Charges filed against Jose Sebastian, first lieutenant of the above-
mentioned battalions, accused of having performed a surgical opera-
tion on Don Sebastian Diaz who died on September 21 as a result
thereof.
pp. 403-443

Vol. 56
1804-1805
1—The Governor of Acapulco sends to the Viceroy the enlistment
papers and personal data of deserters from the new battalions
of the Philippines.
pp. 1-53
2—Concerning the return to the Treasuty of monetary aid given to
the Lieutenant of Artillery, Don Fernando de la Serna enroute
to his assighment in the Philippines.
pp. 54-61

3—Concerning monetaty advances to the Lieutenant of Engineers,
Don Fernando de la Serna, to enable him to go to the Philippines.
pp. 62-83

4—Colonel Don Felipe de Crame requests payment of his salary and
those of his two sons, Don Joaquin and Don Rafael.
pp. 84-99

5—Don Francisco Vinegra, Major of the new battalions of those Is-
lands, asks for travel aid.
pp. 100-150

6—Papers for the arrest of Jose Peno or Toribio, who tried to burn
the galleys which served as detention places for those sentenced
to the galleys at Plan de Rio.
pp. 151-184

7—Don Francisco Martinez, resident of Zumpango del Rio files a com-
plaint against the subdelegate of Textla, about the payment of
$5000 he loaned to aid the troops of the Philippines.
pp. 185-199

8—Correspondence enjoining the Governor of Acapulco to allow leave
for the officers and men of the new battalions and for him to
help them.
pp. 200-213

9—Royal decrees providing that officers and men of the Philippine
battalions be provided with the same privileges enjoyed by those
of the Infantry Regiment while they remain in this realm, and
that they be employed until such time they are sent to their
destination.
pp. 214237

[This reel ends on p. 220 of this exposure.]

Reel 27

[Vol. 56 is éontinued, starting with p. 220 of Exp. 9.]

Exp. 10—Captain Manuel Romero de Leys writes about salaries.

pp. 238-255
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11—Certification that Pedro Leija and Jose Carrillo, corporals, had
been sick when the Magallanes left.
pp. 256-268
1la—Jose Carrillo complains about salaries due him and his infirmities.
pp. 269-280
12—Report on the corporals who deserted the army in the Philippines:
Salvador Chacon, Sebastiari Bardo, Miguel Guerrero, Ramon Ber-
mudes, and Claudio Prera.
pp. 281-315

Vol. 57
1805-1817

1—Measures for the transfer of forty prisoners who were to board
the ship from Spain to their destination in the Philippines.
pp. 1-58
2—Regarding the reimbursement to the subdelegate of Chilapa of ex-
penses incurred by the criminals who ~were being sent to the
Philippines, had escaped, and were caught in his jurisdiction.
pp. 59-67 .
3—Measures so that charges could be filed against the Officer of the
Dragoons Don Manuel Cabeza for the escape of persons being sent
in chains to Acapulco, under his charge.
. pp. 68-123
4—The relmbursement of 625 pesos and 7-1/2 reals to the treasury
of this city, spent in connection with the transport of the Euro-
pean criminals to this city and the maintenance of 13 who Wwere
left here. :
pp. 124-141
5—Complaints of the criminal, Franc1sco de Paula Navarro, regard-
ing the delay in the settlement of his case and of the other
escapees from the chain-gang of Acapulco.
pp. 142-167
6—Measure instituted for the investigation of FEuropeans destined
to Manila and of the prisoners of the three jails of the city.
) pp. 168-176
7—Concerning the insanity of one of the criminals, Joaquin Landibar
destined to Manila.
pp. 177-186
S—Report on the impossibility of the European criminal, Juan Fer-
 nandez, continuing his trip to Manila.
v pp. 187-202
9—Juan Fernandez, one of the European priseners destined to Manila
and held in the city jail, asks that the shackles placed on him
because he was insane be removed.
' pp. 203-211
10—Doxctor Diego Jose Cancino asks that he be paid for treating the
Européan prisoner Leandro Vega ‘
. , . pp. 212-227

ll——Informatlon requested on whether or not the purchasers of the
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merchandise of the ship Rey Fernando should pay excise tax
on the resale made on their own initiative,

pp. 228-278
12—On the lease of the house occupied by the Governor of Acapulco.
pp. 279-295
Vol. 58
1806-1807

1—Index of the official letters which the Governor and Captain-
general of the Philippines is sending to His Excellency the Vice-
roy of New Spain through the Magallanes.
pp. 1-2
2—Officers and troops of the Philippine Islands existing in this realm
who are being ordered to leave on the frigate Hardanger for
their destination.
pp. 3-101
3—The discovery that Don Vicente Dinias Benavente, accountant of
the ships of the Philippines has been with the Royal Treasury.
pp. 102118
4—Measure regarding where an amount remitted by the Dean of the
Manila Audiencia should be sent.
pp. 119-133
5—Pensions and alms for the Dominicans in the Philippines.
pp. 134-160
6—The paper. requested by the Commandant of the frigate Francesa
la Canonera concerning the provisioning of the ship.
- pp. 161-222
7—Disposition of the Commercial Office of those Islands that the
value of the cargo of the Magallanes and the funds found in this
realm belonging to the Islands be remitted in this and the ship
escorting it, the Francesa. .
pp. 223226
8—The Consulado of those Islands orders the remission of the value
of the goods brought in the Magallanes and of the funds accumu-
lated in " this rcalm via this ship and the escorting ship, Francesa.
pp: 227-242
9—The appointment of a chaplain for the Magallanes to replace
Father Francisco Munoz who was appointed president of the Hos-
picio de San Ignamo
pp. 243-258

. 10—The arrival in Acapulco of the San Fernando Magallanes and the

proclamation of the fair for the sale of its cargo.
. pp. 259-307
11—Permit for the remission of the accumulated funds in this realm
realized: from the cargo brought in by the Magallanes in 1804.
. pp. 308-361
12—-St1pends for the Agustinian missionaries of Manila and donations

for altar lamps correspondmg to 1805-1807.
: pp. 362-375
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1807 Exp. 13—Inquiry of the officials of the General Treasury whether or not
they should deduct from the el situado of the Marianas and add
to that of the Philippines the amount of 6781 pesos and 6 reals
7 grams which the officials of Manila claim they had credited
to the Governor for his salary and that of the troops.

pp. 376-384
1807 Exp. 14—Measure requested by the commandant from the ministry to allow
the transport of royal funds via the Francesa la Canonera.
pp. 385-464
Reel 28
[Continuation of Vol. 58, starting with p. 435 of Exp. 14.]
Vol. 59
1809-1810
1809 Exp. 1—About recruiting people for the Veteran Regiments of Manila.
pp. 1-29
1809 Exp. 2—Testimony of the Royal order of April 19, 1796 and subsequent

measures to arrange the restoration to the funds of the Montepio
militar $5000 which had been illegally paid to Dona Francisca
Marquez, widow of the governor of Camarines.
pp:- 30-57

1809 Exp., 3—Testimony of the Royal order or August 6, 1807 wherein His
Majesty approves the expedition of the frigate Ardanger and the
register granted to its recruiters, except that, in the future, the
Administration should do everything possible so that the Con-
sulado can take care of the expedition with preference for the
representation of Don Jose Varela Cagigas and Don Felix Ruis,
recruiters of the expedition.

pp. 58127
1809 Exp. 5—Concerning the return of Don Cristobal Zaldua to this realm from
the Philippines Islands.
pp. 137-161
1809 Exp. 6—Equipment and.the sending of medicines for the Magallanes.
pp. 162-240
1810 Exp. 7—Don Pascual Ygnacio de Apechecha, seeks permission to ship

$20,380 which Don Jose Antonio Apechecha, residing in Man-
ila, has inherited.
pp. 241.251

1810 Exp. 8—The officials of the Acapulco Treasury reports the deductions from
the situado of the Philippines which must be conveyed by the
Magallanes.
. . pp. 252-256
1810 Exp. 9—Don Miguel Marin y Muros, pilot of the Magallanes reported on
the shipment of $12,000 which he had collected in this realm.
pp. 257-278
1810 Exp. 10—Fr. Julian Bonhome asks that the money corresponding to the Reli-
gious of San Gregorio Provinces, Philippines, be sent in the Ma-
gallanes. -
pp. 279-297
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11—Fr, Francisco Munoz, vicar and President of the Hospicio de San
Jacinto of the Philippines, requests His Majesty to grant a special
permit so that Fr. Francisco Barrera, a lay brother, can go to the
Islands aboard the Magallanes.
pp. 298-307

Vol. 60
1798-1809
1—The Acapulco Office reports having given the purser of the
frigate Francesa permission to put on shipboard galones falsos be-
cause there was no time to obtain the proper license and im-
plores approval of the act.
pp. 1-22
2—The provisions needed by the people of the Magallanes for the re-
turn voyages to Manila,
pp. 23-33

3—Medicines for the Magallanes.
pp. 34-38

4—Concerning the replacement of persons who transferred from the
Magallanes to the frigate Concepcion.
pp. 39-58

5—The assignment of Don Jose Maria Valle for eight years service
in the army of Manila.
pp. 59-61

6—Persons assigned to the Philippines Islands and sent through the
Magallanes.
pp. 62-88

7—The Treasury officials of the General Funds of this city shall deli-
ver to the Sergeant of the Dragoons of Michoacan, Jose Maria
Coria, ten pairs of handcuffs for the security of persons he will
take to the galleys that are being sent to Acapulco for the Philip-

pines.
pp. 89-104
8—The provisioning in this city of the Magallanes.
pp. 105-112

9—Regarding the permit given to Don Vicente Perez de Tagle to
ship $40,000 inheritance from his father, the Marquis of Salinas.
pp. 113-119

10—Permit granted to Don Vicente Perez de Tagle to ship $40,000
which his deceased father, the Marquis of Salinas, left in this
realm.
pp. 120-145
10a—Regarding opium which was sent to Manila among the boxes of
medicines in the last expedition of the Magallanes.
pp. 146-150
11—About the permit to ship in the Magallanes various articles and
money which belong to the province of the Agustinian Recol-
lects of the Philippines and to the treasurers of the Marianas
mission.
pp. 151-170
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12—Regarding the remission of the situado of the Mariarias correspond-
ing to 1808.
] ) pp. 171-203
13—Concerning the stipends and alms earmarked by His Majesty for
the missionaries of the Province of San Gregorio in the Philip-
pine Islands.
pp. 204-229
14-Remittance to Manila -of the funds found in this realm belonging
‘to the heu's of Colonel Don Felipe Cerain.
pp. 230-264
15—Perm1t given to Don Santiago Ayala of Manila Commerce to re-
gister $75,0000 with the frigate Francesa la Canonera.
pp. 265-278.
16—Testimony of the representation made by D. Francisco Dlaz Du-
rana, Dean of the Metropolitan Cathedral and executor of the
Will of Colonel Felipe Cerain, asking the Viceroy. of New Spain
to intervene so that the funds of the deceased found in that
realm could be shipped in the Magallanes. :
pp. 279-296
17—Don Francisco Martinez Ibanez asks the Treasurer to pay him the
remaining salaries of Don Diego Martinez Araque, former Regent
of the Royal Audiencia of Manila.
pp. 297-331

18—Concermng ‘the transfer to the Manila Treasury of $6,652, 2 reals
and 10 granos belonging to the heirs of. Don Diego de Aranque
and $738, 2 reals, which belong to the heirs of Ramon Arango.
pp. 332-341

Vol. 61
1781

1—Papers concerning the trip to Habana of the Chief Officer of
Acapulco, Don Francisco Canaveral, the appointment of Don Ra-
fael. Basco and the payment of salaries to the former.:
pp. 112~

2—Claim advanced by Don Francisco Antonio Canaveral to have his
back salaries sent to this Treasury addressed to its head, Don Juan
Lucas Lazaga.
pp. 13-36

'3——Paper on the establishment of the Compania de Filipinas.
. pp. 37117 A

4—-About the- rental of a house in Acapulco- to be used to deposit
the Belamen of the frigate San ]ose
pp. 118-129

5—Investigation of the surpluses. of the Casa de Vanderas for the
Philippines and provisions for recruitment and remission thereof
in: compliance with repeated Royal orders.
pp. 130-260

[This reel ends on page 133 of this exposure.]
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- Reel 29

[Vol. 61, Exp.. 5 is continued; starts with page 153.)

Exp

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

Exp.
Exp.

Exp.

Exp.

“Exp.

Exp.

6—A petition of Miguel Collado, Sergeant of the Philippines Regi-
ment that he be allowed to return as officer in charge of recruits.
The request was granted and provisions were made for passport

~ and salaries to go to Acapulco, gather recruits and conduct them
to Manila.
pp. 261-284

7—The request of Don Pedro Basco, Commandant of the Philippine
frigate San Andres to remain in this realm and the same request
of the Ensign of the Navy, Francisco Basco de la Rocha, com-
mander of the San Jose de Gracia.
pp. 285-301

8—The commandant of the San Andres requests permission to stay
in Mexico, pleading illness and desire to help his mother, and to
entrust the command to the next officer.
pp.302-315

9—That the stipends of the clerics and three suffragans for the year
-ending in August, 1788 be sent. An itemized list is included.
pp. 316-322

10—Roster of recruits for the King’s Regiment in Manila.
pp. 323-327-

11—The royal officials of Manila ask those of Mexico and Acapulco
for notice of payments made by their treasuries to Captain Don
Francisco Jimenez, so that settlements may be made there of his
accounts, '
pp. 328-332

12—Petition of Don Francisco Javier de Mendreta and Don Matcos
Ynguanzo Diaz, oidores of the Royal Audiencia of Manila that
they be paid the salaries due them upon arrival at Acapulco.
pp. 333-344

13—Petition of Don Fabian de Fonseca, Intendant of Iloilo Province,
Philippines, that his salary of $3,000 a year be paid to him
monthly.
pp. 344-346

14—Dona Josefa Vega requests that Ramon Barrientos be not sent-to
Mamla because he had a commitment to marry.
pp. 347-349

15—Official letter of the alcalde ordinario of this city, Don Tomas de
Urizar, containing the charges brought against Juan de Dios Valle,
Jose Rafael de Arce, and Marcelo Jose de A]varez, who ate all
assigned to Manila.
pp. 350-357

16—A petition of Don Francisco Solla, exchange broker of Veracruz
- City that his son Don Francisco Ygnacio be sent to the army of
the Philippines because of bad conduct.
pp: 358-366
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17—Concerning salaries due Don Miguel Bachiller y Mina former as-
sessor. of the Ilocos, Philippines, which should be paid in this
_realm.
pp. 367-374
Vol. 62
1807-1817
1—The Chief Agent of the Consulado of the Philippines requests
that the Royal cedula of October 4, 1806, copies of which he is
transmitting, be complied with in regard to the duties that should
be paid on goods of those colonies brought to this realm. [Illegi-
ble in many parts.]
pp. 1-76
2—Arrival at San Blas of the frigate Santa Potenciana alias La Fide-
lidad with a cargo of goods from Manila; also a manifest of the
cargo.
pp. 77-109
3—A permit granted in Guadalajara for the sale of goods brought by
the Fidelidad and queries about the duties which should be ex-
acted.
pp. 110-129
4—Several orders regarding the despatch of the Rey Fernan and the
Fidelidad.
pp. 130-145
5—The agent of the Consulado of Manila writes that the Fidelidad
should be allowed to bring in silver bullion and in money the
value of the cargo it brought.
' pp. 146-198
6—Arrival of the merchant ship Vlctona at the port of Acapulco with
a cargo of goods from China.
pp. 199-234
7——That a fair for the sale of goods brought by the Victoria be held
in the Port of Acapulco and that the ship be allowed to pass
the winter in Guaymas,
pp, 235-250
8—Axnval of the frigate Victoria in Blas from Manila,
pp. 251-270
9-—Arrival at the Port of Acapulco of the frigate Victoria from Ma-
nila; manifest of its cargo.
pp. 271292
10—Papers presented regarding the advantages of having ships from
the Philippines go to more favorable ports in the Province of
Oaxaca, rather than having them stay in Acapulco.
: "~ pp. 293-363
11~—Reglstry of the frigate Victoria which left Manila.
pp. 364-405
12—Complaint about having prevented Don Ramon de Zuniga of the
commerce of Manila, to contribute $350 to enable the return of
the Magallanes from Acapulco to San Blas where it was; also
the restoration of $700 which the person concerned sent to Aca-
pulco for the duties on the cargo of the Victoria.
pp. 406-440
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1816 Exp. 13—The return of the Victoria to Manila, including letters from those
who wanted to board it or ship goods. )
pp. 441-549
Vol. 63
1798-1810
1798 Exp. 1—Charges against Francisco Casiano alias Carro Casisa, a fugitive

who enlisted as a sailor in the Magallanes. He had committed
crimes in Spain.

. pp. 1-67
[The reel ends on p. 47 of this exposure.] .
Reel 30
1798-1805
[Starts with p. 48 of Exp. 1, Vol. 63.]
1798 Exp. 2—Don Miguel de Vizmanos requests a permit to ship $26,000 in
the Magallanes and in the frigate Fama.
pp. 68-88
1799 Exp. 3—Regarding the accommodations of Francisco Casiano alias Curro

Casisa, deserter from the fleet, and sailor who came from Manila
aboard the Magallanes.

pp. 89-118
1800 Exp. 4—Rafael Coronado member of the Asiatic fleet and allowed to re-
turn, requests assistance to be able to embark for Spain.
pp. 119-125
1800 Exp. 5——Assistance to different persons of the Asiatic fleet brought in by
the frigate Pilar so that they may be able to continue their voyage
to Spain.
pp. 126-188
1805 Exp. 6—About. paying the balance due to Jose Alvarez as a retired ship’s
boy.
pp. 189-203
1800 Exp. 7—Vicente Cuveras, a sailor of the Asiatic fleet seeks axd to go back
to Spain.
pp. 204-212
1800 Exp. 8—Concerning the desertion of Luis Jurado, blood-letter of the frigate
Pilar who surrendered voluntarily.
o pp. 213-239
1800 Exp. 9—The Excise Tax Office reports having sold in Acapulco the greater

part of the cargo aboard the San Rafael before its arrival, in
accordance with the decisions of this office. .

pp. 240-326
1800 Exp. 10—Assistance to Miguel de Dios, a sailor.
pp. 327-331
1801 Exp. 11—Victorio Visoso, in charge of provisions of the frigate Fama re-
quests immediate permission to return to Spain because of illness.
’ pp. 332-377
1801 Exp, 12—Arrival of the war vessel Montanez with fruits and articles from

those Islands.
pp. 378-460



